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KEY RATIOS (CZECH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
2013
Total sales (CZK m)

1,209

EBITDA (CZK m)

(149)

Operating result (CZK m)

(219)

Profit before taxation (CZK m)

2,517

Profit after taxation (CZK m)

2,447

Investments (CZK m)

184

Number of employees (converted to FTE)

455

RWE Česká republika a.s. is hereinafter also referred to as “the Company” or “RWE Česká republika”.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

The Annual Report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters
of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of the Annual Report takes
precedence over the English version.
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1 THE CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

RWE Česká republika has completed the first year of its operation as the country holding company
of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic. Despite the crisis in the European energy sector, the past
year was a successful period from our perspective, which is borne out by the whole Group’s results.
I therefore wish to express sincere thanks to all our employees and partners who contributed
to these results.
A large number of strategic decisions and much work, delivered at a high professional level, are behind
the accomplishments that we achieved despite the complicated situation in the energy market.
The consolidation of our activities was vital for the further development of our business in the Czech
Republic, as it has helped us to streamline the organisational structure of the RWE Group in the Czech
Republic and make it significantly more efficient. In 2013, we concentrated all of our business activities
in four main areas.
Under the guidance of RWE Česká republika, 2013 saw a reorganisation of all activities
in natural gas distribution within RWE Grid Holding. Its subsidiary company, RWE GasNet, absorbed
the then existing three regional natural gas distributors (VČP Net, SMP Net and JMP Net).
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This was made possible by a complex transaction with one of the most important international
infrastructure investors, Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets, which thereby acquired
an approximately 35% stake in RWE Grid Holding.
RWE Česká republika also coordinated the whole project for the absorption of the trading
companies, i.e. Jihomoravská plynárenská, Severomoravská plynárenská, Východočeská plynárenská
and RWE Key Account CZ, by RWE Energie, which is now the only company that trades in natural
gas and electricity for RWE’s 1.7 million customers in this country.
The activities of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic in heat and electricity generation were also
consolidated. Together with projects for biogas plants and CNG refuelling stations, these activities
were merged and concentrated in a new generating company, RWE Energo.
The fourth pillar of the new structure of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic is natural gas storage
in underground gas storage facilities. RWE Gas Storage, the country’s largest UGS operator,
had to cope with a weak demand for storage capacity in 2013. One of the consequences of this
was the discontinuation of new investments in UGS facility expansion. Thus, the CZK 100 million
upgrade of the Lobodice UGS facility was the last major project to be completed for the time being.
We should not omit the significant business accomplishments in the retail market. The springtime
reduction in natural gas prices by more than 10% and our attractive product offering motivated
more than 400,000 customers to sign a new contract with RWE. We also performed well in electricity
sales. The number of signed contracts exceeded the threshold of 300,000. Therefore, last year too,
every third customer who decided to switch their electricity supplier and chose from alternative
suppliers opted for RWE’s offer. RWE was also a clear-cut leader in CNG sales. In the autumn, RWE
extended the range of its customer services to include a virtual mobile operator, RWE Mobil.

Martin Herrmann
Chairman, Board of Directors
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Boosting competitiveness was also the main objective of projects designed to optimise
the Company’s and the Group’s internal working. The first benefits of these projects could be felt
as early as 2013, while we expect additional effects in the coming years, primarily those resulting
from internal savings. I therefore highly appreciate the successful completion of the consolidation
of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic. It is a positive signal for the whole market, conveying
the growth in the efficiency of our business. I am convinced that this will be one of the factors that
will help us rise to the challenges that we are facing.
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2 REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD FOR 2013

The Supervisory Board of RWE Česká republika had six members in 2013. In 2013, the Supervisory
Board continuously monitored the Company’s business activities and results and the Board
of Directors’ performance of its powers and responsibilities in the Company’s business activities.
The Supervisory Board reviewed whether the Board of Directors acted in accordance with generally
applicable legislation, the Company’s Articles of Association, and the decisions adopted by the sole
shareholder acting in the capacity of the General Meeting.
In 2013, the Supervisory Board held three ordinary meetings and had a quorum at all times.
At its meetings the Supervisory Board discussed all matters for which it is responsible under
the relevant legislation, the Company’s Articles of Association, and the decisions adopted
by the sole shareholder acting in the capacity of the General Meeting, including the documents
that the Supervisory Board requested from the Board of Directors as part of its supervisory activity.
Members of the Board of Directors commented on these documents when they were discussed
by the Supervisory Board.
In performing its supervisory activity the Supervisory Board did not find anything inconsistent
with generally applicable legislation, the Company’s Articles of Association, or the decisions
of the sole shareholder acting in the capacity of the General Meeting.
On 11 March 2014, the Supervisory Board reviewed the Company’s financial statements for 2013,
the Board of Directors’ proposal for the distribution of profit for 2013, and the Report on Relations
for 2013.
Concurring with the auditor the Supervisory Board concluded that the financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2013, its financial
performance and its cash flows for 2013 in accordance with Czech accounting legislation.
The Supervisory Board recommends to the General Meeting to approve the financial statements
for 2013 and the Board of Directors’ proposal for 2013 profit distribution.
The Supervisory Board expresses its gratitude to all employees for their work performed
for the Company in 2013.
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Prague, 11 March 2014

Filip Thon
Chairman, Supervisory Board
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3 BACKGROUND

3.1

Identification

Name:

RWE Česká republika a.s.

Registered office:

Praha 10 – Strašnice, Limuzská 3135/12, Post Code 100 98

Company No.:

242 75 051

Legal form:

Joint-stock company

Establishment and inception of the Company
RWE Česká republika a.s. was established on 25 September 2012 and is incorporated
in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, File 18556.

Company profile
In 2013, RWE Česká republika acquired the controlling role in the RWE Group in the Czech Republic.
As part of this process, most of RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. employees transferred
to the Company as of 1 January 2013. RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. is not part of the group
of companies controlled by RWE Česká republika a.s.
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Through its daughter and sister companies, the Company carries out and coordinates the RWE Group’s
business activities in the Czech Republic in four areas: electricity and natural gas trade, including
customer services; natural gas storage; natural gas distribution and network management;
and electricity and heat generation.
As part of its activities, the Company provides the other companies in the RWE Group in the Czech
Republic with its specific managerial and technical expertise and services. These include, for example,
the process management service, including controlled document management, financial and risk
management services, controlling services, internal audit management, coordination of legal
services and regulatory affairs, services in the area of security and protection of people, property
and information, OHS services, public relations services, human resources management services,
comprehensive corporate services, centralised sourcing services, and facility management services,
including office services.

The Company’s organisational units abroad
The Company does not have any organisational units abroad.
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Information about Shareholders and Securities

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

The Company’s share capital is CZK 47,094,432,000. The Company has issued 47,094,432
registered ordinary shares in certificated form, each with a nominal value of CZK 1,000. The sole
shareholder of RWE Česká republika a.s. is RWE Gas International N.V., having its registered office
at Willemsplein 4, 5211AK, ‘s-Hertogenbosch, the Kingdom of the Netherlands.
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3.3

Governing and Supervisory Bodies

The Company’s Board of Directors as at 31 December 2013
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Martin Herrmann
Chairman, Strategy & Communication
Born:
3 July1967
Education:
Westfälische-Wilhelms–Universität, Münster, Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
RWE East, s.r.o. Managing Director;
Chairman of the RWE Grid Holding, a.s. Board of Directors;
Chairman of the Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.,
Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.,
Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.,
RWE Energie, a.s. and RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. Supervisory Boards;
Member of the RWE Supply & Trading GmbH,
Budapesti Elektromos Müvek Nyrt. and ÉMÁSz Nyrt Supervisory Boards.
Any other business activities:
None
Axel Gerhardy
Vice-Chairman, Finance
Born:
14 August 1971
Education:
Georg–August-Universität, Göttingen, Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Vice-Chairman of the RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. Board of Directors;
Member of the RWE Grid Holding, a.s. Board of Directors;
Member of the RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. Supervisory Board.
Any other business activities:
None

5

6

7

Financial Part

Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on Relations between Related
Parties as at 31 December 2013

Content

17

Tomáš Varcop
Member, National Sales
Born:
15 April 1965
Education:
Brno University of Technology, Faculty of Mechanical Engineering,
MBA from University of Pittsburgh
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Chairman of the RWE Energie, a.s. Board of Directors;
Member of the Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.,
Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s. and Východočeská plynárenská, a.s. Supervisory Boards.
Any other business activities:
None

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

The composition of the Company’s Board of Directors did not change in 2013.

18

1

2

3

4

The Chairman’s Statement

Report of the Supervisory Board for 2013

Background

Management Report for 2013

The Company’s Supervisory Board as at 31 December 2013
Filip Thon
Chairman
Born:
17 June 1972
Education:
Institute of Chemical Technology Prague,
Doctorate at VŠB-Technical University of Ostrava
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Chairman of the RWE Polska S.A. Board of Directors;
RWE East, s.r.o. Managing Director;
Member of the Essent N.V. Supervisory Board.
Any other business activities:
None
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Karl Kraus
Vice-Chairman
Born:
9 November 1963
Education:
Technische Universität Braunschweig;
Georg-August-Universität Göttingen, Braunschweig
Membership of bodies of other companies:
RWE East, s.r.o. and RWE Slovensko, s.r.o. Managing Director;
CEO of RWE Hrvatska d.o.o.;
Chairman of the TE Plomin d.o.o. Supervisory Board;
Vice-Chairman of the Východoslovenská energetika, a.s. Supervisory Board.
Any other business activities:
None
Patrik Bauer
Member
Born:
28 May 1977
Education:
Charles University in Prague, Faculty of Social Sciences,
Institute of Economic Studies
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the EČS – Elektrárna Čechy-Střed, a.s. v likvidaci, and TE Plomin d.o.o. Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None

5

6

7

Financial Part

Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on Relations between Related
Parties as at 31 December 2013

Content

19

Gabriele Haas
Member
Born:
2 October 1971
Education:
Johannes-Gutenberg Universität Mainz;
Universidad Jaume I de Castellón, fully qualified lawyer, doctor of law
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the Westnetz GmbH Supervisory Board.
Any other business activities:
None

Lenka Šimarová
Member
Born:
16 November 1964
Education:
Brno University of Technology, Faculty of Mechanical Engineering
Membership of bodies of other companies:
None
Any other business activities:
None
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František Kolátor
Member
Born:
9 May 1980
Education:
Charles University in Prague, Faculty of Social Sciences,
Institute of Economic Studies
Membership of bodies of other companies:
None
Any other business activities:
None
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Changes in the Company’s Supervisory Board in 2013:
On 3 June 2013, the sole shareholder, acting in its capacity as the general meeting, discussed
Mr. Thomas Jan Hejcman’s resignation as a Supervisory Board member and approved
the termination of his office as of 4 June 2013.
On 23 May 2013, the sole shareholder decided to elect a new member to the Supervisory Board,
Mrs Gabriele Haas, with effect as of 5 June 2013.
On 25 September 2013, the one-year first term in office ended for Mr František Čech
and Mr Přemysl Duba, Supervisory Board members.
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With effect as of 25 September 2013, Mr František Kolátor and Mrs Lenka Šimarová were elected
to the Supervisory Board by the Company’s employees.
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Persons Responsible for the Annual Report and for the Audit
of Financial Statements

Auditor and the audit company responsible for reviewing the financial
statements of RWE Česká republika a.s. for 2013
Audit company:
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
Hvězdova 1734/2c, Nusle, 140 00 Praha 4
Registered in the Register of Audit Companies
with the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic
under Licence No 021

Responsible auditor:
Tomáš Bašta
Licence No 1966

Prague, 11 March 2014
Person responsible for accounting

Lucie Čejková
Head of Accounting
RWE Group Business Services CZ, s.r.o.

Persons responsible for the Annual Report of RWE Česká republika a.s. for 2013

Martin Herrmann

Axel Gerhardy

Chairman, Board of Directors

Vice-Chairman, Board of Directors

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

The undersigned hereby affirm that the disclosures in this Annual Report are true and that
no material circumstances have been omitted or distorted.
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4 	MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR 2013

4.1

Results

Revenues, expenses and profit
For 2013, the Company achieved a profit after taxation of CZK 2,447 million. Profit before taxation
amounted to CZK 2,517 million.

Profit after tax
2013 (CZK m)

2012 (CZK m)

(219)

(29)

347

(16)

(444)

0

Depreciation

(70)

(2)

Operating expenses and income

(52)

(12)

2,735

7

Operating result
Added value
Personnel costs

Financial result
Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities
Net profit (loss) after taxation

(70)

4

2,447

(18)

Operating income amounted to CZK 1,218 million and operating expenses were CZK 1,437 million.
The negative operating result of minus CZK 219 million is due to the restructuring process
in the RWE Group in 2013.
The financial result amounted to CZK 2,735 million. This result was mainly achieved thanks to the
transfer of profit from RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. amounting to CZK 2,241 million.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

Structure of assets and liabilities
Structure of assets
As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s total assets grew by CZK 67,665 million
to CZK 90,304 million. Fixed assets increased by CZK 33,407 million to CZK 50,171 million.
In addition to an increase in loans (CZK 11,071 million), the change is mainly due to an increase
in equity stakes in entities under the Company‘s control (CZK 22,219 million).
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Current and other assets grew by CZK 34,258 million and amounted to CZK 40,133 million
as at 31 December 2013. In the current assets category, short-term receivables increased
by CZK 32,616 million. Short-term receivables accounted for 96% of total current and other assets.
The increase in short-term receivables was mainly due to the higher volume of receivables
from cash-pooling, which RWE ČR recently started to manage for the Group.
Financial assets increased by CZK 1,426 million and other assets increased by CZK 210 million.

Assets
Structure of assets (CZK million)
222

634

5

517

23

1,449

5,847

49,536

38,463

16,247

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Long-term investments

Other assets

Short-term receivables

Tangible and intangible fixed assets

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

Financial assets
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Structure of equity and liabilities
The Company’s equity grew by CZK 29,005 million to CZK 50,989 million as at 31 December 2013,
and accounted for 56.5 % of the Company’s total shareholders’ equity and liabilities. The reasons
for this significant rise in equity include, in particular, an increase of CZK 25,092 million in the
share capital.
Borrowings and other liabilities amounted to CZK 39,315 million, and 99% of them were short-term
liabilities.

Equity and liabilities
Structure of equity and liabilities (CZK million)
99

43
50,989

39,055

546
98
12
21,984

118
31 December 2013
Equity

Long-term liabilities

Short-term liabilities

Other liabilities

Provisions
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika
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Risk management
At the Company, the responsibility for risk management falls within the remit of the Risk
Management Committee, whose members are representatives of the Company’s management.
The Company records all identified risks in the Risk Catalogue. All risks are also recorded in a matrix
of risks, which helps to identify the most serious risks in terms of the probability of their occurrence
and size of potential damage. The Company covers the most significant risks with the help
of insurance, hedging transactions, caps on risk positions, provisioning, and application of various
preventive measures, depending on the nature of each particular risk. The Company is mainly
exposed to interest rate, currency and operating risks, which it actively manages.
The Company re-measures all derivatives at their fair value as at the balance sheet day.
The Company does not use hedge accounting.

Research and Development

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

The Company does not carry out research and development of new products.

28

1

2

3

4

The Chairman’s Statement

Report of the Supervisory Board for 2013

Background

Management Report for 2013

4.2

RWE’s Business Activities in the Czech Republic

NATURAL GAS AND ELECTRICITY TRADE
In 2013, RWE Česká republika a.s. carried out its controlling and coordinating role within
the RWE Group in the Czech Republic in respect of natural gas and electricity trade in the market
of final customers. In 2013, the RWE Group also continued offering “electricity and gas from a single
supplier” and improving its customer services. This places the Company among the leading suppliers
in the energy market.

Business strategy
In 2013, the strategic business priorities of the RWE Group’s companies in the Czech Republic
followed up on the objectives and tasks pursued in the preceding period. They primarily focused
on retaining the existing market share in natural gas sales, and also on a dynamically continued
growth in the electricity market.
As in the preceding periods, RWE Česká republika sold natural gas and electricity through
the RWE Group’s four regional companies. The business strategy of 2013 was influenced by active
competitors. These included both the incumbent suppliers, who offer both of these key commodities,
and many smaller challengers. As competition in the market grows stronger, unfair competition
practices, mainly associated with certain smaller energy suppliers’ dealers, are also persisting,
unfortunately.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

The Company’s National Sales division proactively tackled these challenges through changes
to the pricing policy, a number of innovations to the products and services intended
for the household segment and for businesses, and entry into a completely new area of business,
telecommunications. The reduction in gas and electricity prices, new attractive products
(for example, RWE Termo) and the RWE Mobil service are intended to enhance customers’
satisfaction with RWE’s current offering of products and services and to minimise their churn.
In the corporate segment, offers of structured products and solutions customised for Key Accounts
were an integral part of these efforts.
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Marketing
In 2013, the centralised Sales & Marketing department focused primarily on protecting
the existing portfolio of RWE’s customers who take natural gas (in the Household and Small
Customer categories), and on a continuous and dynamic increase in the number of new
electricity customers.
The success factors for retaining its existing market share in gas sales included primarily a reduction
in prices and payments of bonuses or special premiums to the RWE Group’s customers. In spring,
hundreds of thousands of customers selected one of the new products that guaranteed a further
decrease in the price. The intensive communication campaign that accompanied the price reductions
also helped to significantly improve most of the key parameters of the RWE brand’s image.
In electricity sales, Marketing developed a new product guaranteeing that the price of electricity
would decrease every year until the end of 2015 (RWE Optimal); its sales were very successful,
primarily thanks to direct communication to individual customers. Support for a low price of electrical
energy through the RWE Start product also continued. Consumer competitions prepared for new
or existing customers of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic also met with success.
The Company also continued focusing all efforts on extending the portfolio of the services that
it provides. In addition to developing the existing on-line and off-line services (RWE Online Servis)
and supporting the network of customer service centres, Marketing also set up a brand new service
in telecommunications. RWE Mobil is a virtual operator offering value for money in prepaid mobile
calls and the opportunity to win additional bonuses or credit in the case of signing contracts
for certain products. This offering has made the RWE Group in the Czech Republic a major energy
supplier in the Czech market that also offers telecommunications services in addition
to the conventional energy commodities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

The Company certainly did not neglect the issue of rational energy use in 2013; it supported
a number of activities related to this issue. Clear evidence of this effort is a special website
at setrimenergii.cz, which offers a large number of tips and extensive advice on how to reduce
energy costs and makes it possible to monitor electricity, gas and water consumption in every
household every day.
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Natural gas sales
In 2013, the RWE Group’s companies in the Czech Republic retained their leadership of the natural
gas market and sold a total of 37.6 TWh of natural gas to their customers. Compared with 2012,
the total volume of natural gas sold increased slightly, by 610 GWh. An increase was registered
in the Individually Operated Customers category (by 3.5 TWh), while the Mass Market category
experienced a drop of 2.9 TWh.
The priority of 2013 was to curb customer attrition and stabilise the results generated by natural
gas trade. The RWE Group companies responded to competition in the natural gas market primarily
through their active pricing policy and by offering a number of new products. A unique product
is RWE Termo, which helps to save expenses on natural gas when the current ambient temperature
is lower than the long-term normal temperature.
In terms of temperature, with its average temperature of 8.39 °C the year 2013 was slightly warmer
compared with the long-term normal temperature of 8.01 °C.

Natural gas sales (CZK thousands)
Sales

2013

2012

large customers

16,316,706

13,403,167

small customers

5,846,871

7,551,868

18,789,935

22,350,002

3,046,937

2,826,624

44,000,449

46,131,662

households
other traders

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

Total sales
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Electricity sales
In 2013, the RWE Group in the Czech Republic continued its successful expansion in the electricity
market. In terms of the number of new customers connected, the RWE Group was the most
successful new player in the electricity industry. Companies in the RWE Group in the Czech Republic
supplied a total of 2.0 TWh of electrical energy to their approximately 250,000 customers.
In electricity, the RWE Group’s companies were also leaders in new product development;
one of them is RWE Optimal 2015, which guarantees customers a decrease in the price in each
year of supply.

Sales

large customers
small customers (business)
small customers (households)

Total sales

2013

2012

2,245,748

1,702,572

967,613

546,747

1,951,043

1,168,652

5,164,404

3,417,970

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

Electricity sales – final customers (CZK thousands)
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NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION
In the RWE Group in the Czech Republic, RWE GasNet, s.r.o. distributes natural gas. This line
of business is subject to regulation. The Energy Regulatory Office lays down the rules for operating
this activity, including the prices. Distributors are responsible for distribution system operation
and maintenance and for sales of natural gas distribution capacities.
2013 was a year of fundamental changes for the distributor. In January, RWE Grid Holding, a.s.
became the sole owner of the then existing four regional gas distribution companies, RWE GasNet, s.r.o.,
VČP Net, s.r.o., SMP Net, s.r.o., and JMP Net, s.r.o. This was made possible by a complex transaction
with one of the most important international infrastructure investors, Macquarie Infrastructure
and Real Assets, which thereby acquired an approximately 35% stake in RWE Grid Holding a.s.
As of 1 November, three regional gas distribution companies (VČP Net, s.r.o., SMP Net, s.r.o.,
and JMP Net, s.r.o.) were absorbed by RWE GasNet, s.r.o.
RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o. and JMP DS, s.r.o. operate and maintain the distribution system
for RWE GasNet, s.r.o. As at 31 December 2013, the system served 2,308,905 supply points,
and 71.8 TWh of natural gas was distributed in 2013.

Gas installations operated
2013

2012**

2011**

2010**

Length of operated gas pipelines
Local networks

km

42,452

42,384

42,220

42,086

Service pipes

km

11,035

11,010

10,963

10,715

Long-distance pipelines

km

11,344

11,361

11,370

11,385

59

60

62

66

Number of high-pressure regulating stations

2,801

2,801

2,798

2,797

Number of intermediate-pressure regulating
stations

860

870

876

884

6,880*

3,753

3,752

3,751

Number of delivery and very high pressure
regulating stations
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Number of municipalities connected to gas supply

* C
 hange of the methodology in the reporting of municipalities connected to gas supply. On the basis
of the establishment of a single distribution system operator, cadastral areas that are connected to gas supply
and covered by the current gas distribution licence are reported.
** Aggregate values for all distribution system operators.

In 2013, the Company spent a total of CZK 2,446 million on renovating and developing
the distribution network with a view to maintaining the high standard of its safe and reliable
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operations. Renovation focused mainly on a gradual replacement of steel gas pipelines in local
networks, and on eliminating the risky sections of helically welded high-pressure gas pipelines
and those of unsuitable material (Liten). The preparations for and the carrying out of the
refurbishments in local networks successfully used the approach of coordinating construction work
with other infrastructure managers as well as local governments and self-governments. A major part
of the capital expenditure, totalling CZK 303 million, was spent on acquiring gas installations from
third parties and new networks from third-party investors. The Company spent CZK 128 million
on establishing easements – required by the law – on operated gas pipelines in 2013.
The distribution system operator seeks to minimise losses and maximise efficiency on a long
term basis. In 2013, RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o. and JMP DS, s.r.o. carried out the Work Force
Management (WFM) and Predictive Maintenance projects. Amendments to generally applicable
legislation made it possible for gas facility operators to focus some more, in line with qualified
predictions, on leakage tests on older and failure-prone steel gas pipelines, because newer
PE pipelines are failure-free to a large extent. The WFM project applies a comprehensive
set of measures for managing mobile work force in the field (inspectors and specialists).
The benefits include a better organisation of work, use of new work equipment and tools
(for example, all field workers have tablets), etc.
In selling the distribution network’s capacity RWE GasNet, s.r.o. is very particular about keeping
a non-discriminatory approach and observing the rules laid down in both general and special
gas legislation. It also seeks to improve continuously the quality of its services and to enhance
overall user-friendliness. In 2013, support provided by the ONLINE SERVIS PDS [Distribution System
Operator’s Online Services] portal was extended; through the portal, the portfolios of supply points
can be managed, and readings, requests and complaints can be submitted.
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In its capacity as a distributor, RWE GasNet, s.r.o. provides input data to the gas market operator
(OTE), which prepares natural gas balances. In co-operation with OTE, RWE GasNet, s.r.o. launched
the service of electronic billing for gas distribution in 2013.
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NATURAL GAS STORAGE
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o., a wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE Česká republika, operates six
underground gas storage (UGS) facilities at Dolní Dunajovice, Lobodice, Štramberk, Třanovice,
Tvrdonice and Háje. Their storage capacity totals almost 2.7 bcm. The first five of these UGS
facilities are situated in northern and southern Moravia, where natural geological structures,
originally containing natural accumulations of natural gas and oil, are used for gas storage. The only
exception is the Lobodice plant, which was developed in an aquifer by displacing water from porous
rock. The Háje UGS facility serves for covering peaks in natural gas demand of the industrial centres
in the Central Bohemian Region and in Prague; an excavated underground cavern has been used
for gas storage there for more than 15 years.
In operating its UGS facilities, RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. focuses on the efficiency, reliability,
availability and flexibility of its services while ensuring a high standard of safety at work
and in operations.
In 2013, RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. invested considerable funds in the renovation and development
of its gas facilities. It invested a total of CZK 412 million. Investment activities centred on expanding
the Tvrdonice UGS facility, at a cost of CZK 135 million, which entailed the drilling of a new well
and the completion of another three wells. The Háje UGS facility went through an upgrade
of operating wells, which were retrofitted with subsurface safety valves, and the finalisation
of the third stage of the control system upgrade. Another major capital project was the commissioning
of a new compressor supporting a more flexible operation of the Lobodice UGS facility, at which
‘boundary’ valves were installed to ensure that the operation of the facility and the operation of the
gas transmission system are reliably separated. Control rooms at the Tvrdonice and Dolní Dunajovice
facilities were relocated to enhance the safety of operating personnel. In line with the plan of repairs,
2013 saw continued retrofits of all operating wells with subsurface safety valves on an ongoing basis.
On the whole, 31 subsurface safety valves were installed in the storage facility wells.
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Storage capacity sales
In 2013, RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. offered storage capacity and the related storage services
in a completely transparent and non-discriminatory manner to all potential customers. Despite
the continuously unfavourable market situation, the company was successful in raising the number
of its customers to 21 in 2013.
During the year, RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. organised nine storage capacity auctions, offering various
combinations of working gas volumes and withdrawal/injection capacities, as well as separate
storage capacities, on both firm and interruptible bases. As regards other storage services,
customers were mainly interested in storage capacity transfer and lease, temporary storage volume,
and options for flexible reversals of injection/withdrawal directions. RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
also worked on new storage services and continued to improve its IT applications.
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ELECTRICITY AND HEAT GENERATION
Electricity and heat generation is the fourth segment of RWE Group’s business activities in the Czech
Republic. RWE Energo, s.r.o. is in charge of this segment. Its core business is establishing, financing,
upgrading and operating district and local heating systems and electricity generation. It is also
active in CNG (compressed natural gas) in transport applications.
RWE Energo, s.r.o. primarily carries out comprehensive projects for upgrades of district and local
heating systems using cogeneration units, i.e. combined heat and power generation (CHP) projects.
The capacities installed in 32 completed projects total 21,916 kW for electricity generation
and 332,021 kW for heat and cold generation.
The following are the most important projects that have been completed: Náchod (northern
Bohemia), where the combined capacity is 17,000 kW of electrical energy and 115,300 kW of heating
and cooling capacity; Beroun (central Bohemia), where the installed capacity is 52,950 kW in thermal
energy; Valašské Meziříčí (Moravia) with an installed thermal capacity of 42,200 kW; Svitavy (eastern
Bohemia) with a heating and cooling capacity of 20,700 kW; Břeclav (Moravia) with a combined
installed capacity of 520 kWe and 16,800 kWt; and Rumburk (northern Bohemia) with an installed
heating and cooling capacity of 16,000 kW. The company either operates the projects using
its in-house workforce, or leases the installation to third parties that operate them under the direct
technical supervision of and with the help of financing provided by RWE Energo, s.r.o. Complex CHP
installations are usually in-house operated.
RWE Energo, s.r.o. also seeks to preserve and continue earlier profitable projects operated
on the basis of rented installations. In 2013, the Odolena Voda (central Bohemia) project was
extended in this way; RWE Energo, s.r.o. again won the opportunity to operate the heat supply
system for the next 15 years.
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Preparations for CNG in transport projects continued in 2013, and further steps were taken to roll
out a network of CNG refuelling stations. The Czech CNG market grew by 44% to 21.9 million cubic
metres in 2013, and the number of CNG vehicles grew at the same rate. The market share held
by RWE Energo, s.r.o. was 22% (down by 1.8%). In 2013, the terms and conditions were agreed
for the development of three new refuelling stations, the construction of which is planned for 2014.
The modernisation of stations in Hradec Králové and Ostrava was started.
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4.3

Communication Activities

As in the preceding years, in 2013 the Company’s PR & Press Services also coordinated and arranged
all internal and external communication activities for all the other companies in the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic.
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The RWE – Energy of Czech Film and RWE – Energy of Czech Skiing projects have been the Company’s
key sponsorship activities since as early as 2006. In 2013, the Company supported the production
of three full-length feature films. The Revival comedy premièred at the Karlovy Vary International
Film Festival in July, and won the audience award. In November, The Clowns comedy drama staged
its première. And in December, director Jiří Vejdělek’s new film, Něžné vlny [Gentle Waves] was
screened in film theatres in a preview. Documentaries were included too. The Company sponsored
the production of the Fulmaya, děvčátko s tenkýma nohama [Fulmaya, the Girl with Skinny Legs],
Zuzana Michnová – Jsem slavná tak akorát [Zuzana Michnová – Just the Right Kind of Famous], Ztracen 45
[Missing 1945] and Sixteen documentary films. The co-operation with Czech Television continued.
Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio [RWE & Barrandov Studio Film Foundation] changed
the rules of its scriptwriting competition intended for both professional and amateur scriptwriters.
The purpose of this change is to improve the quality of the entries, objectivity in assessing them,
and an opportunity to award larger grants to the awarded authors on the occasion of a single
closing date of the competition. The Company helped young talents by way of a gift to the system
of FAMU’s internal grants, which are intended for subject-specific projects and graduates’ films.
RWE Česká republika was the main partner of the Karlovy Vary International Film Festival, the Czech
Film Review Awards and of the Pavel Koutecký Award for documentaries.
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At the end of 2013, the RWE – Energy of Czech Skiing long-term project entered into its ninth
season. By the close of 2013, the Company had sponsored 18 ski resorts throughout the country.
Throughout the project, RWE has significantly helped to improve the safety navigation of skiers
on the slopes. In its partnership with the winter resorts, the Company has provided 8,300 metres
of safety nets, 330 safety poles, 520 safety pads, 38 large panoramic maps and 90 electronic
information boards to date. Late 2013 saw, with RWE’s support, the beginning of the fourth
annual edition of the reality show called S ČT sport na vrchol [All the Way to the Top with Czech
Television Sport], focused on seeking out skiing talents. The co-operation with Sportovní gymnázium
[a grammar school promoting sports] in Vrbno pod Pradědem and Sportovní akademie [Sports
Academy] in Špindlerův Mlýn also continued.
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RWE KARTA [RWE CARD] brought the advantages of both sponsorship projects to customers.
Thanks to this card, customers could obtain 20% discounts on Czech films in partner multiplex
cinemas and on one-day ski passes at partner ski resorts. These discounts were supplemented with
6% reductions on winter skiing trips with NEV-DAMA and holidays with the FISCHER tour operator.
The Company was the official partner of the Czech Olympic Team, and the general partner of Czech
paralympic athletes. It was the official partner of the prestigious Prague Spring International Music
Festival for the 19th time.
The Company organised a number of events for the employees of almost all companies
of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic, which were primarily intended to promote corporate
culture and enhance customer focus. It organised screenings of the film Něžné vlny, and held
the winter and summer sport games and the Blue Day in Nové Město na Moravě, the programme
of which was also intended for employees’ families. Most of the Group’s employees participated
in at least one of the events.
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The employees’ social commitment was supported by the RWE COMPANiUS initiative geared towards
financial and organisational support for volunteering. For full year 2013, the Company supported
95 projects in various areas, worth a total of CZK 1.8 million. The Company’s share amounted
to CZK 1 million.
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Human Resources

Quite a number of important events took place under the auspices of Human Resources in 2013.
In October, Prague hosted a meeting of RWE AG’s personnel management team, headed
by Uwe Tigges, Chief Human Resources Officer on the Executive Board, with personnel managers
of RWE Česká republika. In addition to the then current topics, the meeting also focused
on the HR Evolution project, the subject of which is the future arrangement of HR organisational
structures and their activities. The HR Story, i.e. a plan of HR activities until 2020, was also
presented at the meeting. The plan includes six main objectives: change RWE’s performance
culture, develop employees through encouraging their talents, be the employer of choice, ensure
consistence with RWE’s business activities, improve efficiency and, above all, act as a united
HR community.
In September, Prague and Brno hosted Diversity Days again, this time focused on disabilities.
December saw the Diversity 2013 conference, dedicated to the importance of work-life balance,
as part of the Group’s Diversity programme. Diversity Talks, i.e. Breakfast with…, where employees
had opportunities to meet interesting personalities from science, culture and industry, elicited
a very positive response.
Human Resources worked hard to recruit new employees for the Call Centre in Ostrava.
The online psychological diagnostics application and also the inclusion of an assessment centre
in the recruitment process have helped to boost the efficiency of the whole process.
In respect of co-operation with higher education institutions, a series of workshops
was organised throughout the country. In September, a new Trainee programme was launched;
under the programme nine university graduates are gaining their initial work experience
at RWE until 2015.
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Human Resources also continued working on further improvements to employee benefits
at the RWE Benefit Portal. New features include an increase in the contribution to benefits
for employees who are registered as disabled (“OZP”), by CZK 3,000 per year, and the launch
of the option of premium healthcare for all employees. Employees are now also able to donate
their benefit points for charitable purposes. The Company has also extended the range of employee
discounts on some of its suppliers’ products and services.
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Staffing levels
RWE Česká republika had 479 employees as at 31 December 2013.
Employee structure by education, in percent
18 employees 3.8% of total staff

Secondary education

153 employees 31.9% of total staff

Complete secondary

308 employees 64.3% of total staff

Tertiary

Wages
Wage levels continued to develop in accordance with the principles and arrangements agreed
in the Collective Agreement and the plans and intentions of the Company’s management in respect
of human resources.
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Professional training and development
Employees and their line managers held discussions on the occasion of Annual Staff Performance
Reviews (Appraisals) and Development Plan Design for the third year. The sophisticated system
of training devotes great attention to upgrading employees’ professional qualifications
and to their personal development, and to promoting managerial competences. A wide range
of employee development takes place, through a broad-ranging offer of technical training courses
and conferences, and also by way of mentoring, coaching, project participation and other forms.
One of the key priorities of the system of development and training throughout the RWE Group
is the all-round development of talented employees possessing a great potential for continued
personal, professional and career growth. September 2013 saw the completion of both of the talent
promoting programmes, Prospects and TopTech. These programmes have generated 29 graduates
and four completed projects.
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In 2013, the Company spent CZK 6.9 million on education and development, which was 2.24%
of its payroll costs.

Social policy
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The Company performed its obligations under the Collective Agreement signed for the period
from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013. It was signed with Odborový svaz Transgas
[Transgas Trade Union] (as of 1 January 2014 SOS Energie) and Sdružení základních organizací
Odborového svazu UNIOS RWE [Association of Branches of the UNIOS RWE Trade Union] in the
autumn of 2011. In December 2013, a new Collective Agreement for 2014–2015 was signed,
guaranteeing a continued high level of working conditions and employee benefits.
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4.5

Environmental Protection

The RWE Group in the Czech Republic met all the targets and requirements for environmental
protection arising from applicable legislation. RWE understands this compliance as the result
of performing its obligations under the Environmental Management System implemented pursuant
to ISO 14001 and the responsible approach followed not only by the employees who are responsible
for environmental issues but also all the other employees.
In accordance with the environmental targets set for 2013 at RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.,
operations in the distribution system reduced generation of hazardous wastes, thanks to starting
to use different input liquids, such as anti-freeze, for the process circuits of regulating stations.
The recyclable waste management system was also improved: collection of this waste was
optimised, thereby minimising the environmental impacts of this activity.
The year 2013 saw major progress in the tackling of old environmental pollution cases falling
within regional gas companies’ responsibility, thanks to agreement reached with the competent
public administration authorities. In Javorník, the proactive approach of the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic, most notably RWE GasNet, s.r.o., helped to start up the process
of remediation of a pollution site, where the main source of contamination, originating from
town gas production, is located under a permanently inhabited family house.
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. launched close co-operation with Agentura ochrany přírody a krajiny
České republiky [Nature Conservation Agency of the Czech Republic] on a project called
Living Islands in RWE Gas Storage. The purpose of this co-operation is financial support
for the maintenance of protected areas around underground gas storage facilities
and the planting of original meadow ecosystems on land owned by RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
This will promote the biodiversity of fauna and flora in the landscape and economise
on grassland maintenance.
No environmental accident or event with a negative environmental impact occurred
in the operations of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic in 2013.
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All important data on the Company’s environmental protection is publicly available
on www.rwe.cz and in Integrovaný registr znečišťování (IRZ, Integrated Pollution Register)
in accordance with generally applicable Czech legislation.
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Occupational Health and Safety
Occupational health and safety is high on the agenda of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic.
Through their managers, all of the Group’s companies take care that their own and their suppliers’
employees go home as healthy as when they reported to work. In 2013, the Company
drew up a new policy of OHS organisation and management, to be followed from 2014.
On that occasion, all main control processes in this area were updated and made more efficient
in 2013. In 2013, the Company extended its efficient managerial tools in risk prevention; these
tools are geared towards the psychology of safe behaviour, control of consciousness, and managers’
site inspections on a regular basis. On the whole, the RWE Group’s companies in the Czech Republic
registered 11 injuries resulting in incapacity for work. Applying the Company’s internal methodology,
the LTIF (Lost Time Injury Frequency, i.e. the incidence of occupational injuries resulting in incapacity
for work for more than one day per million hours worked) rate was 1.6 for the Company’s own
employees and 2.15 when counting injuries of suppliers’ staff. The Company itself registered one
occupational injury resulting in incapacity for work; it was a no-fault traffic accident. The worst event
was a gas explosion during work in December on the distribution network of RWE GasNet, s.r.o.
in a duct in Plzeň, where seven of the supplier’s employees suffered injuries.
Enhancing the safety of the work provided by suppliers’ employees was part of a comprehensive
programme involving audits of contractors delivering projects in the distribution system.
The audits were carried out by in-house staff and also TÜV-SÜD’s independent auditors.
The Group’s companies charged penalties for failure to meet safety requirements. In addition,
a number of meetings with suppliers’ representatives on safety issues were organised, including
safety training for hundreds of supplier employees.
In 2013, the Company promoted health management and organised health days in the Group’s main
administrative centres, in which hundreds of employees took part. The promoted areas included
stress and fatigue management, healthy nutrition, back health, and prevention of melanoma
and lifestyle diseases.

Preserving a low injury rate at all times continues to be one of the objectives of the Company
and the RWE Group in the Czech Republic. For 2014, the LTIF target was set at 2.3, including injuries
of suppliers’ employees.
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In 2013, the Company invested in educational and training events for employees who use passenger
cars in their work. Altogether, 381 employees of the Group went through safe driving training
courses provided by Dekra Automobil on training ranges, assessment of driving errors,
and defensive driving courses.
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4.6

Subsequent Events

No events with a major impact on the assessment of the Company’s business had occurred
by the date of this Annual Report.
Effective as of 1 January 2014, Východočeská plynárenská, a.s., Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.,
Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s., and RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. merged by absorption into
RWE Energie, a.s. As part of the merger, the legal form of the successor company changed
from joint-stock company to private limited company.

4.7

Outlook

The RWE Group underwent a profound restructuring process in 2013. In 2014, this process will continue
to full completion. The plans are that during 2014, real estate of RWE Energie, s.r.o. will be spun off
and merged into RWE Česká republika. JMP DS, s.r.o. will be absorbed by RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.
and RWE Energie, s.r.o. will be contributed to the share capital of RWE Česká republika.
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Subsequently, the Company will be able to fully focus on optimising and increasing the efficiency
of the existing processes so that all the completed changes meet the Company’s expectations.
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5 FINANCIAL PART

5.1

Financial Statements

BALANCE SHEET (in thousand Czech crowns)
Ref.

ASSETS

31. 12. 2013
Gross

a

b

B.
B.

B.

II.
II.

B.

III.

B.

III.

2

3

4

90,372,557

(68,558)

90,303,999

22,639,242

Fixed assets

(68,558)

50,170,911

16,764,065

(10,033)

91,848

2,760

1.

Software

100,701

(9,247)

91,454

1,580

2.

Royalties

1,180

(786)

394

1,180

601,112

(58,525)

542,587

514,081

67,088

–

67,088

67,088

445,933

(19,046)

426,887

437,543

87,988

(39,479)

48,509

9,347

103

–

103

103

49,536,476

–

49,536,476

16,247,224

38,362,730

–

38,362,730

16,144,295

4,883

–

4,883

4,883

11,168,863

–

11,168,863

98,046

Tangible fixed assets
1.

Land

2.

Constructions

3.

Equipment

4.

Other tangible fixed assets
Long-term investments

1.

Investments in subsidiaries

2.

Investments in associates

3.

Intra-group loans – subsidiaries and controlling
parties, associates
Current assets

1.
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1
TOTAL ASSETS

101,881

II.

C.

III.

C.

III.

IV.

C.

IV.

D.

I.

D.

I.

39,922,023

–

39,922,023

5,874,135

Long-term receivables

9,784

–

9,784

4,244

Deferred tax asset

9,784

–

9,784

4,244

38,463,389

–

38,463,389

5,847,281

135,764

–

135,764

3,592

36,107,132

–

36,107,132

5,843,689

265

–

265

–

15,188

–

15,188

–

2,204,787

–

2,204,787

–

Short-term receivables
1.

Trade receivables

2.

Receivables – subsidiaries / controlling parties

3.

Taxes – receivables from the state

4.

Short-term advances paid

5.

Estimated receivables

6.
C.

Net

50,239,469

C.
C.

31. 12. 2012
Net

Intangible fixed assets

I.

B.

Provision

Other receivables
Financial assets

253

–

253

–

1,448,850

–

1,448,850

22,610

1.

Cash in hand

8

–

8

–

2.

Cash at bank

1,448,842

–

1,448,842

22,610

Prepayments and accrued income

211,065

–

211,065

1,042

1.

Prepaid expenses

127,590

–

127,590

–

2.

Accrued income

83,475

–

83,475

1,042
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Ref.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

a

b
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

90,303,999

22,639,242

A.

Equity

50,988,807

21,983,791

A.

I.

A.

I.

A.

III.

A.

III.

A.

IV.

A.

V.

Profit / (loss) for the current period

I.

Share capital

47,094,432

22,002,000

47,094,432

22,002,000

Reserve fund and other reserves

1,466,036

–

1.

Legal reserve fund

1,466,036

–

(18,209)

–

Retained earnings / Accumulated losses

B.

III.
III.

C.

I.

C.

I.

Accumulated losses

(18,209)

–

2,446,548

(18,209)

Liabilities

39,272,160

655,445

Provisions

118,134

11,586

1.

Income tax provision

75,584

–

2.

Other provisions

42,550

11,586

II.

B.

7

Share capital

B.

B.

31. 12. 2012

6

1.

1.

B.

31. 12. 2013

Long-term liabilities

98,730

98,046

1.

Liabilities – subsidiaries / controlling parties

98,730

98,046

39,055,296

545,813

1.

Trade payables

125,156

925

2.

Liabilities – subsidiaries / controlling parties

38,828,693

7,542

3.

Liabilities to employees

4.

Liabilities for social security and health insurance

5.

Taxes and state subsidies payable

6.

Short-term advances received

Short-term liabilities

22,039

–

8,839

–

16,631

455

4,930

–

47,134

536,891

1,874

–

7.

Estimated payables

8.

Other payables

43 032

6

1.

Accrued expenses

3,961

6

2.

Deferred income

39,071

–

Accruals and deferred income
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INCOME STATEMENT (in thousand Czech crowns)
Ref.

DESCRIPTION

a

b

Accounting period
2013

II.
II.

1.

B.

1,209,100

3,074

Sales of own products and services

1,209,100

3,074

862,518

19,108

44,089

17,466

1.

Raw materials and consumables used

2.

Services

818,429

1,642

Added value

346,582

(16,034)

+
C.
C.

Staff costs

444,002

–

1.

Wages and salaries

321,106

–

2.

Emoluments of board members

80

–

3.

Social security and health insurance costs

4.

Other social costs

D.

Taxes and charges

E.

Depreciation and amortisation expense
III.
III.

Sales of fixed assets and raw materials
1.

F.
F.

1.

IV.

–

14,903

–

4,532

5

69,991

1,744

8,101

–

Sales of fixed assets

8,101

–

8,753

–

Net book value of fixed assets sold

Other operating income

H.

107,913

Net book value of fixed assets and raw materials sold

Changes in operating provisions and complex prepaid expenses

G.

Other operating expenses

8,753

–

30,964

11,586

467

–

15,565

–

(218,657)

(29,369)

*

Operating result

VI.

Income from sales of securities and shares

200,479

–

Securities and shares sold

235,185

–

Income from long-term investments

2,241,274

–

Income from investments in subsidiaries and associates

2,241,274

–

19,392

–

J.
VII.
VII.

1.

IX.

Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives

L.
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2

Sales of production
Cost of sales

B.

25. 9. 2012–31. 12. 2012

1

26,515

–

X.

Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Interest income

660,738

6,934

Interest expense

125,008

7

XI.

Other financial income

66,882

945

Other financial expenses

66,808

956

N.
O.
*

Financial result

Q.

Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities

Q.

2,735,249

6,916

70,044

(4,244)

1.

– current

75,584

–

2.

– deferred

(5,540)

(4,244)

**

Profit or loss on ordinary activities after taxation

2,446,548

(18,209)

***

Net profit / (loss) for the financial period

2,446,548

(18,209)

****

Net profit / (loss) before taxation

2,516,592

(22,453)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(CZK’000)
As at 25 September 2012
Increase of share capital
Net loss for the period

Share
capital

Statutory
reserve fund

(Accumulated
losses) /
Retained
earnings

2,000

–

–

2,000

Total

22,000,000

–

–

22,000,000

–

–

(18,209)

(18,209)

As at 31 December 2012

22,002,000

–

(18,209)

21,983,791

Non-monetary contribution

25,092,432

1,466,036

–

26,558,468

–

–

2,446,548

2,446,548

47,094,432

1,466,036

2,428,339

50,988,807

Net profit for 2013
As at 31 December 2013
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2013

(CZK’000)

2013

Period from
25 September 2012
to 31 December 2012

2,516,592

(22,453)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit / (loss) on ordinary activities before tax
A.1

Adjustments for non-cash movements

A.1.1

Depreciation / amortisation of fixed assets

69,991

1,744

A.1.2

Changes in provisions

30,964

11,586

A.1.3

(Profit) / loss from disposal of fixed assets

A.1.4

Dividend and profit distribution income

35,358

–

(2,241,274)

–

A.1.5

Net interest expense / (income)

A.1.6

Other non-cash movements1

A*

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax
and changes in working capital

A.2

Working capital changes

A.2.1

Changes in receivables and prepayments and accrued income

A.2.2

Changes in short-term payables, accrued expenses and deferred income

A**

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax

A.1

Interest paid

A.2

Interest received

A.3

Dividends and profit distribution received

49,903

–

A***

Net cash flow from operating activities

(9,304,773)

(5,830,213)

(22,437,880)

(16,149,178)

8,101

–

(535,730)

(6,927)

19,949,090

–

19,824,991

(16,050)

(29,344,762)

(5,847,294)

(290,977)

27,228

(9,810,747)

(5,836,116)

(122,222)

(1)

578,293

5,904

Cash flows from investing activities
B.1

Acquisition of fixed assets

B.2

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

B.3

Loans and borrowings to related parties

(4,439,696)

(98,046)

B***

Net cash flow from investing activities

(26,869,475)

(16,247,224)

684

98,046

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

Cash flows from financing activities
C.1

Changes in long- and short-term liabilities

C.2

Changes in equity

C.2.1

Cash inflow from the increase of share capital

C***

Net cash flow from financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period

1

0

22,000,000

684

22,098,046

(36,173,564)

20,610

22,610

2,000

(36,150,954)

22,610

 ow Other non-cash movements comprises mainly of following operations: increase in share capital of the Company
R
by CZK 25,092,432,000 resulting from non-cash contribution of 25,092,432 pieces of shares of RWE Grid Holding, a.s.;
difference between the value of non-cash contribution (the amount was determined by an expert opinion) and the
nominal value of the shares in the amount of CZK 1,466,036,000 which was used for the creation of statutory
reserve fund (see Note 7 Equity); and receivable from RWE GasNet, s.r.o. in the amount of CZK 6,609,365,000,
which resulted from reduction of share capital of the company RWE Grid Holding, a.s. (see Note 6 Investments
in subsidiaries and investments in associates).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2013

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1 Introductory information about the Company
RWE Česká republika a.s. (“the Company”) was incorporated on 25 September 2012 and has
its registered office at Limuzská 3135/12, Prague 10 – Strašnice, the Czech Republic. The Company’s
primary business activities are management and governance of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic.
Identification number of the Company is 242 75 051.
As at 1 January 2013 the Company took over from RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. management role
in RWE Group in the Czech Republic and officially started its activities. To carry out its activities,
in 2012 and 2013 the Company acquired fixed assets as described in the notes below.
The members of the Board of Directors as at 31 December 2013 were as follows:
Name

Position

Mr Martin Friedrich Herrmann

Chairman

Mr Axel Gerhardy

Vice-Chairman

Mr Tomáš Varcop

Member

Name

Position

Mr Filip Thon

Chairman

Mr Karl Kraus

Vice-Chairman

Mr Patrik Bauer

Member

Mrs Gabriele Haas

Member

Mr František Kolátor

Member

Mrs Lenka Šimarova

Member

Changes in the membership of the Company, which occurred during 2013:
On 3 June 2013 the sole shareholder acting in the authority of the General Meeting considered
resignation of Mr Thomas Jan Hejcman as member of the Supervisory Board and approved his
termination at his request with effect from 4 June 2013.
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On 23 May 2013, the sole shareholder decided on the election of Mrs Gabriele Haas as a new member
of the Supervisory Board with effect from 5 June 2013.
On 25 September 2013 the first one-year term of a Supervisory Board membership for Mr František Čech
and Mr Přemysl Dub expired.
Effective from 25 September 2013 Mr František Kolátor and Mrs Lenka Šimarová were elected
by the Company’s employees as members of the Supervisory Board.
The Company is organised as follows:
The General Meeting is the supreme body of the Company. The Board of Directors governs the Company’s
activities and acts on its behalf. The Supervisory Board is the Company’s controlling body.
Governance of the Company is divided into three departments titled as follows:
Strategy & Communication, Finance and National Sales. These departments are managed by the
relevant members of the Board of Directors.
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In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the Czech Republic, the Company
did not prepare the consolidated financial statements because as the controlled entity it is included
in consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the parent company RWE Aktiengesellschaft registered
at Opernplatz 1, 451 28 Essen, Germany, which prepared the consolidated financial statements
under the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in the Czech Republic and have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
as described below.

2.2 Intangible fixed assets
All intangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 60,000
are treated as intangible fixed assets.
Technical improvements of intangible fixed assets exceeding CZK 40,000 per year are capitalised.
Purchased intangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related
with its acquisition. All research costs are expensed. Development costs of which results are
intended for trading are capitalised as intangible fixed assets and recorded at the lower of cost
and the value of future economic benefits. All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
Intangible fixed assets are amortised applying the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows (unless the related agreement or license conditions stipulate a shorter
or a longer period):
Intangible fixed assets

Estimated useful life

Software

3 years

Other intangible fixed assets

6 years

2.3 Tangible fixed assets
All tangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 10,000
are treated as tangible fixed assets.
Repairs and maintenance expenditures of tangible fixed assets are expensed as incurred. Technical
improvements of tangible fixed assets exceeding CZK 40,000 per year are capitalised.
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The amortisation plan is updated during the useful life of the intangible fixed assets based
on the expected useful life.
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Acquired tangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related
with its acquisition.
Tangible fixed assets, except for land which is not depreciated, are depreciated applying the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Tangible fixed assets
Buildings and constructions

Estimated useful life
30–50 years

Plant, machinery and equipment
Furniture and fittings

4–30 years
4–8 years

The depreciation plan is updated during the useful life of the tangible fixed assets based on the
expected useful life.

2.4 Leases
The costs of assets held under both finance and operating leases are not capitalised as fixed assets.
Lease payments are expensed evenly over the life of the lease. Future lease payments not yet due
are disclosed in the notes but not recognised in the balance sheet.

2.5 Investments in subsidiaries and investments in associates
Investments in subsidiaries represent ownership interests in enterprises that are controlled
by the Company (“the subsidiary”).
Investments in associates represent ownership interests in enterprises over which the Company has
significant influence, but not control (“the associate”).
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are initially recorded at cost and the carrying value
is decreased to recognise any decrease of the value of the investor’s share in the subsidiary
or the associate as at the balance sheet date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

2.6 Receivables
Receivables are stated at nominal value less a provision for doubtful amounts. A provision for
doubtful amounts is created on the basis of an ageing analysis and individual evaluation of
the credit worthiness of the customers. Receivables from related parties have not been provided for.
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2.7 Cash and cash equivalents
The Company has prepared a Cash flow statement using the indirect method. Cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, stamps and vouchers and cash in banks, including bank overdrafts.
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that can be exchanged for a predictable
amount of cash and no significant changes of value over time are expected. Cash equivalents are,
for example, deposits with a maturity of less than 3 months from the date of acquisition and liquid
debt securities traded in public markets.
The Company uses so-called cash-pooling within the group. A receivable (liability) that arises
from cash-pooling is presented in the Cash Flow statement as a part of the item Cash and Cash
equivalents if it is due within 3 months after the balance sheet date.
If the liability arising from cash-pooling represents a form of financing then it is not presented
in the Cash Flow statement as a part of the item Cash and Cash equivalents.
Other cash deposits within the group due within 3 months after the balance sheet date, which are
not part of the Cash-pooling, are not treated as Cash and cash equivalents.

2.8 Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated and recorded at the fixed exchange
rate determined by the Company as at the first day of the month.
Cash, receivables and liabilities balances denominated in foreign currencies have been translated
at the exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank as at the balance sheet date. All exchange
gains and losses on cash, receivables and liabilities balances are recorded in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange contracts, currency and interest rate
swaps and other derivative financial instruments are initially recognised on the balance sheet at cost
and subsequently are re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices or discounted cash flow models. All derivatives are presented in other receivables or in other
payables when their fair value is positive or negative, respectively.
Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are not treated as separate derivatives.
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Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are included in gain or loss on revaluation
of securities and derivatives.

2.10 Revenue and expense recognition
Revenue and expenses are recognized as deferred income and accrued expenses, i.e. in the period
to which they relate.
Sales are recognised as at the date the services are rendered and are stated net of discounts
and value added tax.

2.11 Provisions
The Company recognises provisions relating to probable future obligations or expenditures, when
the purpose of the obligations or expenditures is known but the precise amount, or the time when
the obligation or expenditure will crystallise, is not known. However, provisions are not created for
future operating expenditures or for expenditures directly related to future revenue transactions.
The Company recognises a provision for its future income tax payable which is presented net
of advances paid for the income tax. If advances paid are higher than the estimated income tax
payable the difference is recognised as a short-term receivable.

2.12 Employment benefits
The Company recognises a relating to rewards, bonuses and any other employment benefits.
Regular contributions are made to the state to fund the national pension plan. The Company also
provides contributions to defined contribution plans operated by independent pension funds and
capital life insurance. The contribution for pension and life insurance is recognized as an expense.
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2.13 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset
or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. Deferred tax asset is recognised if it is probable that
sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilised.
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2.14 Related parties
The Company’s related parties are considered to be the following:
– Parties, which directly or indirectly control the Company, their subsidiaries and associates;
– Parties, which have directly or indirectly significant influence on the Company;
–M
 embers of the Company’s or parent company’s statutory and supervisory boards and management
and parties close to such members, including entities in which they have a controlling or significant
influence;
– Subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies.
Material transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are disclosed in Notes 12 and 13.

2.15 Changes of accounting policies and corrections of prior period
Changes of accounting policies (inclusive deferred tax impact) and corrections of errors arising from
incorrect accounting or unrecorded expenses and income in the prior periods is reflected in the
balance sheet line Restatements of retained earnings, if these changes and corrections are material.

2.16 Subsequent events
The effects of events, which occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation
of the financial statements, are recognised in the financial statements in the case that these events
provide further evidence of conditions that existed as at the balance sheet date.
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Where significant events occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the preparation
of the financial statements, which are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the effects of these events are disclosed, but are not themselves recognised in the
financial statements.
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3 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
1 January 2013

Additions / transfers

Disposals

31 December 2013

Software

1,580

99,121

–

100,701

Royalties

1,180

–

–

1,180

Total

2,760

99,121

–

101,881

Software

–

(9,247)

–

(9,247)

Royalties

–

(786)

–

(786)

Total

–

(10,033)

–

(10,033)

(CZK’000)
Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

2,760

91,848

25 September 2012

Additions

Disposals

31 December 2012

Software

–

1,580

–

1,580

Royalties

–

1,180

–

1,180

Total

–

2,760

–

2,760

Software

–

–

–

–

Royalties

–

–

–

–

Total

–

–

–

–

Net book value

–

(CZK’000)
Cost
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4 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
(CZK’000)

1 January 2013

Additions / transfers

Disposals

31 December 2013

Cost
Land
Buildings and constructions
Equipment
Other tangible fixed assets
Total

67,088

–

–

67,088

439,000

6,949

(16)

445,933

9,634

90,275

(11,921)

87,988

103

–

–

103

515,825

97,224

(11,937)

601,112

(1,457)

(17,589)

–

(19,046)

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and constructions
Equipment
Total
Net book value

(CZK’000)

(287)

(42,292)

3,100

(39,479)

(1,744)

(59,881)

3,100

(58,525)

514,081

542,587

25 September 2012

Additions

Disposals

31 December 2012

Cost
Land

–

67,088

–

67,088

Buildings and constructions

–

439,000

–

439,000

Equipment

–

9,634

–

9,634

Other tangible fixed assets

–

103

–

103

Total

–

515,825

–

515,825

–

(1,457)

–

(1,457)

Accumulated depreciation
Equipment

–

(287)

–

(287)

Total

–

(1,744)

–

(1,744)

Net book value

–

The information on operating lease commitments is disclosed in Note 15 – Commitments.

514,081
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5 RECEIVABLES
(CZK’000)
Trade receivables – current
Receivables – subsidiaries and controlling parties
Estimated receivables
Other receivables
Short-term receivables

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

135,764

3,592

36,107,132

5,843,689

2,204,787

–

15,706

–

38,463,389

5,847,281

Deferred tax receivable

9,784

4,244

Long-term receivables

9,784

4,244

38,473,173

5,851,525

Total net book value of receivables

Receivables – subsidiaries and controlling parties include receivables from cash-pooling to companies
within the Group and receivables from short-term loans (see Note 13 – Related party transactions).
Estimated receivables consist primarily of the profit transfer from RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. in the
amount of CZK 2,191,371,000 (see Note 13).
Unsettled trade receivables have not been secured and none of them are due after more than 5 years.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 the Company has not created any provision
for doubtful receivables.
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6 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

31 December 2013

Cost
(CZK’000)

Share on
equity
(%)

Net profit /
loss in 2013
(CZK’000)

Equity
(CZK’000)

Carrying
value
(CZK’000)

Transfer
of profit
and dividend
income in 2013
(CZK’000)

17,016,152

100.00

2,306,707

16,284,229

17,016,152

2,191,371

372,431

100.00

62,445

73,445

372,431

48,983

4,883

49.00

13,388

23,597

4,883

920

19,882,615

65.04

4,177,268

34,635,288

19,882,615

–

634,205

100.00

(31,383)

517,875

634,205

–

457,327

100.00

44,981

115,270¹

457,327

–

38,367,613

2,241,274

Czech entities
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.
RWE Group Business Services CZ, s.r.o.2
RWE Grid Holding, a.s.

3

RWE Energo, s.r.o.
Foreign entities
RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
Total
1
2
3

38,367,613

 ata not audited as at the date of preparation of the financial statement.
D
Change of the name of the company as at 1 December 2013.
25,092,432 pieces of shares in total nominal value of CZK 18,254,744,000.

31 December 2012

Cost
(CZK’000)

Share on
equity
(%)

Net profit /
loss in 2012
(CZK’000)

Equity
(CZK’000)

Carrying
value
(CZK’000)

15,314,537

90

2,129,765

16,000,798

15,314,537

372,431

100

48,983

59,983

372,431

4,883

49

2,086

12,086

4,883

457,327

100

13,927

64,433

457,327

Czech entities
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.
RWE Service CZ, s.r.o.2
Foreign entities
RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
Total

16,149,178

Change of the name of the company as at 1 December 2013.
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Reduction of share capital of the company RWE Grid Holding, a.s. with payment to shareholders
came into effect in September 2013. The Company’s share (65.04%) was CZK 6,837,688,000
from which CZK 228,323,000 was paid out and under a liability assumption agreement from
6 September 2013 CZK 6,609,365,000 was transferred from receivable from RWE Grid Holding, a.s.
to long-term loan provided to RWE GasNet, s.r.o.
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. is located in Prosecká 855/68, Prague 9.
RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o. is located in Plynární 2748/6, Ostrava.
RWE Group Business Services CZ, s.r.o. is located in Limuzská 3135/12, Prague 10 – Strašnice.
RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o. is located at Hviezdoslavovo námestie 13, Bratislava, Slovakia.
RWE Grid Holding, a.s. is located in Limuzská 3135/12, Prague 10 – Strašnice.
RWE Energo, s.r.o. is located in Prosecká 855/68, Prague 9.
At none of the listed subsidiaries is recorded a difference between share on equity and share
on voting rights. No controlling contracts have been signed with either subsidiary.
On 15 April 2013 the company has entered into profit transfer agreement with company
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. with effective date on 1 June 2013.

7 EQUITY
Authorised and issued share capital

Ordinary shares of CZK 1,000, fully paid

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

No. of
pieces

Carrying value
(CZK’000)

No. of
pieces

Carrying value
(CZK’000)

47,094,432

47,094,432

22,002,000

22,002,000
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The Company is fully owned by RWE Gas international N.V., incorporated in the Netherlands,
5211 AK’s-Hertogenbosch, Willemsplein 4, identification number: 341 68 241. The ultimate holding
company of RWE Group is RWE Aktiengesellschaft, incorporated in Germany.
In May 2013 RWE Gas International N.V., the sole shareholder of the Company decided on an increase
of share capital of the Company by CZK 25,092,432,000 by non-cash contribution of 25,092,432
pieces of shares of RWE Grid Holding, a.s. The difference between the value of non-cash contribution
(the amount was determined by the expert opinion) and the nominal value of the shares amounted
to CZK 1,466,036,000 and was used for the creation of a reserve fund.
The general meeting of the shareholders approved the financial statements for 2012 and decided
about the allocation of the loss incurred in 2012 of CZK 18,209,000 by transfer to accumulated
losses, on 13 May 2013.
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8 PROVISIONS
(CZK’000)

Income tax

Other

Total

–

–

–

Opening balance as at 25 September 2012
Charge for the year

–

11,586

11,586

Opening balance as at 31 December 2012

–

11,586

11,586

75,584

33,145

108,729

–

(2,181)

(2,181)

75,584

42,550

118,134

Charge for the year
Used in the year
Closing balance as at 31 December 2013

at the closing balance as at 31 December 2013 consists of a provision for employee benefits in the
amount of CZK 42,550,000 (2012: CZK 11,586,000) and a provision for income tax in the amount
of CZK 75,584,000 (2012: CZK nil.).
For an analysis of the current and deferred income tax, see Note 11 – Income tax.

(CZK’000)

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

125,156

925

Trade payables
Payables – subsidiaries and controlling parties
Estimated payables
Other payables
Total short-term liabilities

38,828,693

7,542

47,134

536,891

54,313

455

39,055,296

545,813

Payables – subsidiaries and controlling parties

98,730

98,046

Total long-term liabilities

98,730

98,046

39,154,026

643,859

Total short-term and long-term liabilities

Short-term payables – subsidiaries and controlling parties include payables from cash-pooling
to companies within the Group and liabilities to GasNet – short-term loan in the amount
of CZK 737,196,000 and RWE Aktiengesellschaft - short-term part of received loan in the amount
of CZK 8,228,000. Long-term payables – subsidiaries and controlling parties represent long – term
part of loan received from RWE Aktiengesellschaft (see Note 13 – Related party transactions).
Other payables consist of an intercompany loan (see Note 13).
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company does not have any overdue payables.
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The Company does not have any overdue payables related to social or health insurance or any other
overdue payables to tax authorities or other state institutions.
The payables stated above have not been secured against any assets of the Company and are not
due after more than 5 years.

10 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company uses currency forwards and swaps in order to hedge against exchange rate risk.
Forward instruments
31 December 2013
Fair value
(CZK’000)

Positive

Negative

31 December 2012

Nominal
amount

Fair value
Positive

Negative

Nominal
amount

Forward rate agreements

190

(23)

25,670

–

–

–

Total trading agreements

190

(23)

25,670

–

–

–

The notional value of the concluded forward contracts represents the net value of the total volume
of concluded forward transactions.
Profits and losses realized from derivative transactions:
31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Profits from currency derivatives

37,312

–

Losses from currency derivatives

(33,479)

–

3,833

–

(CZK’000)

Total

Changes in fair value of trading derivatives are recorded in the income statement.
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Certain derivative transactions, although providing effective economic hedges under the Company’s
risk management positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting under Czech accounting rules.
Therefore, they are presented above as trading derivatives.
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11 INCOME TAX
The income tax expense can be analysed as follows:
(CZK’000)
Current tax expense

2013

Period from 25 September 2012 to 31 December 2012

75,584

0

Deferred tax expense

(5,540)

(4,244)

Total income tax expense

70,044

(4,244)

Current tax can be analysed as follows:
2013

Period from 25 September 2012 to 31 December 2012

2,516,592

(22,453)

(2,244,859)

–

21,398

(9,252)

(CZK’000)
Net profit / loss before taxation
Non-taxable income
Difference between accounting
and tax depreciation
Non-tax deductible costs

129,600

11,599

Net taxable profit

422,731

(20,106)

Deduction of tax losses

(19,616)

–

(5,117)

–

397,998

–

(36)

–

75,584

–

Donations
Reduced net taxable profit
Tax incentives
Current tax expense

The deferred tax was calculated at 19%.
Analysis of deferred tax asset / (liability) can be analysed as follows:
(CZK’000)

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Difference between accounting and tax net book value of fixed assets

–

(1,777)

Total deferred tax liability

–

(1,777)

Difference between accounting and tax net book value of fixed assets

1,699

–

Other provisions

8,085

2,201

–

3,820

Total deferred tax asset

9,784

6,021

Net deferred tax asset

9,784

4,244

Deferred tax asset arising from

Tax losses
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12 EMPLOYEES

Members of Statutory bodies who are employees
Average number of other members of management

2013

2012

1

–

17

–

Average number of other staff

437

–

Total number of employees

455

–

The Company’s management includes executive members of the Board of Directors, other directors
and senior staff members directly reporting to them.
Management

Other staff

Wages and salaries

44,432

276,674

321,106

Social security costs

10,661

97,252

107,913

936

13,967

14,903

80

–

80

56,109

387,893

444,002

(CZK’000)

Total

2013

Other social costs
Remuneration of the Supervisory Board
Total staff costs

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

In connection with the restructuring of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic, as at 1 January 2013,
444 employees of RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. have been transferred to the Company by transfer
of rights and obligations.
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13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The company had the following transactions with related parties:

2013

Period from 25 September 2012
to 31 December 2012

RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. (services, assets1)

127,882

536,648

RWE Aktiengesellschaft (financial assets)

109,838

6

Regional gas and distribution companies of the RWE Group
(services, financial assets)

109,124

–

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o. (assets2, services)

253,946

–

RWE Energo, s.r.o. (services, financial assets)

10,384

945

RWE Group Business Services CZ, s.r.o. (services)

24,483

–

(CZK’000)
Purchases

Other companies within RWE group (services, financial assets)

23,382

–

659,039

537,599

81,648

2,593

RWE Aktiengesellschaft (financial assets)

322,925

7,269

Regional gas and distribution companies of the RWE Group
(services, financial assets)

963,744

597

Total
Revenues / Sales
RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. (services, financial assets)

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. (services, financial assets)

71,029

–

RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o. (services)

189,802

141

RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o. (services, financial assets)

112,423

–

RWE IT Czech s.r.o. (financial assets, services)

203,353

–

Other companies within RWE Group (services, financial assets)
Total

2

315
10,915


Purchases
from company RWE Supply & Trading, a.s. include assets acquisition in the amount of CZK 91,263,000
and received services in the amount of CZK 36,619,000.
Purchases from company RWE Interní služby, s.r.o. include assets acquisition in the amount of CZK 98,792,000
and received services in the amount of CZK 155,154,000.

The transactions as stated above do not include information on purchases of investment shares
which are described in Note 6 Investments in subsidiaries and investments in associates.
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The following related party balances were outstanding:
(CZK’000)

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Trade receivables
RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.
RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.
RWE East, s.r.o.
Regional gas and distribution companies of the RWE Group
JMP DS, s.r.o.

7,985

3,111

16,979

169

8,468

114

42,894

37

8,359

–

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

14,045

–

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

7,369

64

RWE Slovensko, s.r.o.
Other companies within RWE Group
Total trade receivables

6,138

–

20,554

50

132,791

3,545

Prepayments paid
RWE Energo, s.r.o.

4,023

–

Total prepayments paid

4,023

–

RWE Aktiengesellschaft

11,924

433

Regional gas and distribution companies of the RWE Group

Unbilled supplies / accrued income
64,268

597

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

4,798

–

RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.

3,730

–

Npower Ltd.

4,381

–

JMP DS, s.r.o.

1,349

–

Other companies within RWE Group

3,539

–

93,989

1,030

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

2,191,371

–

Total receivables from profit transfer

2,191,371

–

Total unbilled supplies / accrued income
Receivables from profit transfer
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Other receivables (from derivatives)
RWE Aktiengesellschaft

189

–

Total other receivables (from derivatives)

189

–
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Loans provided / receivables from Cash-pooling
RWE Aktiengesellschaft

34,900,000

4,500,000

RWE GasNet, s.r.o.

715,440

1,336,147

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

378,928

–

RWE IT Czech s.r.o.

104,537

–

KA Contracting SK, s.r.o.
Total loans provided / receivables from cash-pooling

8,227

7,542

36,107,132

5,843,689

98,730

98,046

KA Contracting SK, s.r.o.

11,070,133

–

Total long-term loans

RWE GasNet, s.r.o.

11,168,863

98,046

Total receivables

49,698,358

5,946,310
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(CZK’000)

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Trade payables
RWE Aktiengesellschaft

4,830

–

–

119

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

27,699

–

RWE Consulting GmbH

12,281

–

5,603

–

RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.

RWE Group Business Services CZ, s.r.o.
Other companies within RWE Group

3,984

–

54,397

119

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

1,465

–

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

2,118

–

Other companies within RWE Group

1,956

–

Total prepayments received

5,539

–

RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.

1,142

536,641

RWE Energo, s.r.o.

4,404

–

npower Ltd

1,966

–

RWE East, s.r.o.

1,476

–

–

6

Total trade payables
Prepayments received

Unbilled supplies / accruals and deferred income

RWE Aktiengesellschaft
Other companies within RWE Group

2,035

–

11,023

536,647

RWE Aktiengesellschaft

23

–

Total other payables (from derivatives)

23

–

Total unbilled supplies / accruals and deferred income
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Loans received / payables from cash-pooling
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.

8,228

7,542

914,695

–

RWE Group Business Services CZ, s.r.o.

48,359

–

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

35,143

–

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.
RWE East, s.r.o.
RWE Energo, s.r.o.

3,351,599

–

119,009

–

728

–

198,127

–

RWE Gas Transit, s.r.o.

124,397

–

RWE GasNet, s.r.o.

952,209

–

RWE Energie, a.s.
Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.

11,761,846

–

7,386,665

–

Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.

8,746,238

–

Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.

5,181,450

–

38,828,693

7,542

98,730

98,046

Total loans received / payables from Cash-pooling
Long-term loans
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
Total long-term loans
Total payables / accruals and deferrals

98,730

98,046

38,998,404

642,235

Both provided and received loans and receivables and payables form cash-pooling bear interest
at market interest rates.
The long-term loan provided by RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. to RWE GasNet, s.r.o. in the nominal
value of CZK 4,460,768,000, has been transferred to the Company on 30 January 2013.
The remaining part of the loan in the amount of CZK 6,609,365,000 is described in Note 6
Investments in subsidiaries and investments in associates.

The Company has paid the rent for company apartments for foreign members of management,
which for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to CZK 2,072,000 (for period
from 25 September 2013 until 31 December 2012: CZK nil).
A stock option program was created for senior management, for which a provision in the amount
of CZK 9,888,000 as at 31 December 2013 (as at 31 December 2012: CZK 5,611,000) has been created.
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Company cars are made available for use by senior management, which purchase price amounted
to CZK 16,730,000 (as at 31 December 2012: CZK nil).
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Besides the remuneration and benefits disclosed above, there was no other cash or non-cash
consideration provided in the year ended 31 December 2013 and the period of 4 months ended
31 December 2012 to the Company’s shareholders, and members of Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board and senior management.

14 FEES PAID AND PAYABLE TO THE AUDIT COMPANY
The information relating to the fees paid and payable for services performed by the audit company
is included in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent company of the Group.

15 COMMITMENTS
The Company has the following commitments in respect of operational leases:
31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Current within one year

40,488

–

Due after one year but within five years

21,608

–

–

–

62,096

–

(CZK’000)

Due after five years
Total commitments in respect of operational leases

As at 31 December 2013 the Company did not have any other contracted capital commitments.

16 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
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As part of its governance activities of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic the Company provides
guarantees on behalf of regional gas companies of the RWE Group. As at 31 December 2013
the Company issued guarantees in the amount of CZK 1,036,447,000 (as at 31 December 2012: CZK nil).
The guarantees are issued primarily to the energy market operators. As at 31 December 2013 such
guarantees were issued in the amounts of CZK 959,550,000 to OTE, a.s. and CZK 75,000,000
to SPP CZ, a.s.

17 CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the cash flow statement can be analysed as follows:
(CZK’000)
Vouchers
Cash in bank
Receivable / (liability) arising from cash-pooling
Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

8

–

1,448,842

22,610

(37,599,804)

–

(36,150,954)

22,610
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18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In connection with restructuring of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic, as at 1 January 2014,
115 employees of the Company were transferred to RWE Energie, s.r.o. by transfer of rights
and obligations.
After the date of preparation of the financial statements there have been no other events, which
would have significant impact on financial statements as at 31 December 2013.

Martin Friedrich Herrmann

Axel Gerhardy

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
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6 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR‘S REPORT
6.1

Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements

To the shareholder of RWE Česká republika a.s.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RWE Česká republika a.s.,
identification number 24275051, with registered office at Limuzská 3135/12, Praha 10
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, the income
statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (“the financial statements”).

Statutory Body’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Statutory Body is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Czech accounting legislation,
and for such internal control as the Statutory Body determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 – RWE Česká republika

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors
of the Czech Republic, International Standards on Auditing and the related application
guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
Note
Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version
of our report takes precedence over the English version.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic
T: +420 251 151 111, F: +420 251 156 111, www.pwc.com/cz
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic, Identification Number: 40765521, registered
with the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register of Audit Companies with the Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021.
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To the shareholder of RWE Česká republika a.s.
Independent auditor’s report
Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2013, its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Czech accounting legislation.

represented by partner

Tomáš Bašta
Statutory Auditor, Licence No. 1966
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6.2	Auditor’s Report on the Annual Report and on the Report on Relations
between Related Parties as at 31 December 2013

To the shareholder of RWE Česká republika a.s.
We have audited the financial statements of RWE Česká republika a.s., identification
number 24275051, with registered office at Limuzská 3135/12, Praha 10 – Strašnice
(“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 disclosed in the annual report
in chapter 5 and issued the opinion dated 11 February 2014 and disclosed in chapter 6.1.

Report on the Annual Report
We have verified that the other information included in the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 is consistent with the financial
statements which are included in this annual report in chapter 5. The Statutory Body
is responsible for the accuracy of the annual report. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the consistency of the annual report with the financial statements
based on our verification procedures.

Auditor’s Responsibility
We conducted our verification procedures in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing and the related application guidance of the Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and perform the verification
procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the other information
included in the annual report which describes matters that are also presented in the
financial statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the relevant financial
statements. We believe that the verification procedures performed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the other information included in the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 is consistent, in all material respects, with the
financial statements.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic
T: +420 251 151 111, F: +420 251 156 111, www.pwc.com/cz
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic, Identification Number: 40765521, registered
with the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register of Audit Companies with the Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021.
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To the shareholder of RWE Česká republika a.s.
Independent auditor’s report
Report on review of the Report on Relations
In addition we have also reviewed the accompanying report on relations between
the Company and its controlling party and between the Company and the other persons
controlled by the same controlling party for the year ended 31 December 2013
(the “Report”), prepared in accordance with requirements of §66a of the Commercial
Code. The completeness and accuracy of the Report is the responsibility of the Statutory
Body of the Company. Our responsibility is to express our conclusion on the Report
based on performed review.

Scope of Review
We conducted our review in accordance with Audit standard 56 of the Chamber of
Auditors of the Czech Republic. This standard requires that we plan and perform the
review to obtain limited assurance as to whether the Report is free of material factual
misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of Company personnel, analytical
procedures and examination, on a test basis, of factual accuracy of data. A review
therefore provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the accompanying Report has not been properly prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with the requirements of Article 66a of the Commercial Code.

represented by partner

Tomáš Bašta
Statutory Auditor, Licence No. 1966
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7 REPORT ON RELATIONS BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
Since RWE Česká republika a.s. (hereinafter “the Company”) as a controlled person did not enter into
any controlling agreement effective in 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors has, under Section
66a (9) of Act No 513/1991, the Commercial Code, as amended, drawn up this Report on Relations
between the Company and Controlling Persons and between the Company and Other Persons under
Common Control (hereinafter “Related Parties”) for 2013, to the extent these Related Parties
are known to the Company. This Report is an integral part of the Company’s Annual Report for 2013
and the Company’s shareholders will have this Report available by the same time and under
the same conditions as the annual financial statements.

1 Controlling persons
Throughout the past accounting period the Company was controlled by the following persons:
a) Directly
• RWE Gas International N.V., with its registered office at 5211AK ‘s-Hertogenbosch,
Willemsplein 4, the Netherlands, which was the sole shareholder of the Company,
b) Indirectly
• RWE Aktiengesellschaft, with its registered office at Opernplatz 1, 45128 Essen, Germany,
which was the sole shareholder of RWE Gas International N.V.

2 Other Related Parties
The Company requested the above controlling persons to provide a list of the other persons
that were controlled by the same controlling persons in the past accounting period.
The Company’s Board of Directors has drawn up this Report on the basis of the information
provided by the controlling persons and other information available to the Board of Directors.
The scheme of the relations between and control of companies along the relevant line within
the RWE Group as at 31 December 2013 can be found on the third cover page of this Annual Report.
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3 Agreements executed between the Company and Related Parties
and performance provided and accepted
The Company and Related Parties executed agreements listed in Appendix 1 in the past accounting
period. No damage has been caused to the Company by performing under these agreements. There
was therefore no need to secure any compensation for damage or enter into any agreements thereon.
The values of the performance and payments between Related Parties in the relevant acounting
period are shown in Note 13 of the Notes to the annual financial statements as at 31 December 2013.
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4 Other legal acts made in the interest of Related Parties
The Company did not make any legal acts in the interest of Related Parties in the past accounting period.

5 Measures adopted in the interest or upon suggestion of Related Parties
The Company did not adopt or carry out any measures in the interest or upon suggestion of Related
Parties in the past accounting period.

6 Non-existence of damage
In the past accounting period, the Company did not suffer any damage caused by agreements
in place with Related Parties, or other legal acts made in the interest of Related Parties or measures
carried out in the interest or upon suggestion of Related Parties, which had been executed
or adopted in or before the past accounting period.

7 Confidentiality
This Report does not disclose any information that is subject to the Company’s trade secret.

8 Conclusion
This Report was approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 February 2014 and it has been
presented for review to the Supervisory Board and to the Company’s auditor, who reviews
the financial statements under a separate law.

Martin Herrmann

Axel Gerhardy

Chairman, Board of Directors

Vice-Chairman, Board of Directors
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ANNEX 1
Agreements executed between the Company and related parties in the last accounting period
Type/Subject matter of agreement

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

Agreement on the assignment of rights and obligations
under a contract

1

Addendum 6 to an Agreement on Non-residential Space Sublease

1

Agreement on the assignment of rights and obligations
under a contract

1

Addendum 1 to an Agreement on Transport Service Provision

1

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision
in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision
of Corporate Services

1

RWE GasNet, s.r.o.

JMP Net, s.r.o.
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Number
of agreements

Contracting party

SMP Net, s.r.o.
VČP Net, s.r.o.

Agreement on profit transfer

1

Lease Agreement

1

Addendum 1 to the Lease Agreement

1

Addendum 2 to the Lease Agreement

1

Addendum 3 to the Lease Agreement

1

Addendum 2 to the Agreement on Non-residential Space Sublease

1

Addendum 3 to the Agreement on Non-residential Space Sublease

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on Lease Termination

1

Cash-pooling facilities agreement

1

Lease Agreement

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1
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Contracting party

Type/Subject matter of agreement

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

Agreement on service provision in IT, lease, logistics and mobile
and IP phone accounting

2

Agreement on the termination of the Agreement on service
provision in IT, lease, logistics and mobile phone accounting

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision in IT,
lease, logistics and mobile and IP phone accounting

1

Agreement on the provision of rights to intangible assets

2

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Addenda 1 and 2 to a Lease Agreement

2

Addenda 4 and 5 to an Agreement on Non-residential Space Sublease

2

RWE IT Czech s.r.o.

JMP DS, s.r.o.

89

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Agreement on Transfer of Ownership Interest

1

Addendum 1 to Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Lease Agreement

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision
of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision of SLA
services in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on personal data processing

2
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Type/Subject matter of agreement

RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision
of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision
of SLA services in Procurement & Services

1

Addenda 1, 2, 3 and 4 to an Agreement on Non-residential
Space Lease

4

Assignment of rights and obligations to an Agreement
on Security Service Provision

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision
of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Amendment No. 1 to the Service and Management Agreement

1

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Addenda 1, 2 and 3 to an Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

3

Brainloop sub-licence agreement

1

Addenda 2, 3 and 4 to an Agreement on Non-Residential
Space Sublease

3

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision
of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision of SLA
services in Procurement & Services

1

RWE East, s.r.o.

RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.
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RWE Energie, a.s.

Lease agreement on personal property

1

Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

2

Addenda 1, 2 and 3 to the Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

3

Addenda 1 and 2 to the Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

2

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Agreement on service provision in Sales Management and Support

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on the provision of SLA services
in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

RWE Energo, s.r.o.

Severomoravská
plynárenská, a.s.

91

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

Agreement on debt assignment

1

Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

1

Agreement on Non-residential Space Sublease

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on Non-residential Space Sublease

1

Agreement on the assignment of rights and obligations

1

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Settlement agreement

1

Agreement on the payment of insurance premiums

1

Grant of consent to the use of a trademark

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

1

Addenda 1, 2 and 3 to the Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

3

Lease agreement on personal property

1

Agreement on service provision in Sales Management and Support

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1
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Type/Subject matter of agreement

Východočeská
plynárenská, a.s.

Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

1

Addenda 1, 2 and 3 to the Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

3

Addenda 1, 2 and 3 to the Agreement on Non-residential Space Lease

3

Grant of consent to the use of a trademark

1

Agreement on service provision in Sales Management and Support

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

Addendum 1 to Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

Addenda 1 and 2 to an Agreement on Non-residential Space Sublease

2

Addenda 1, 2 and 3 to a Lease Agreement

3

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Grant of consent to the use of a trademark

1

Agreement on service provision in Compliance

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision in Compliance

1

Agreement on personal data processing

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on the payment of insurance premiums

1

Agreement on personal data processing

1

Agreement on service provision in Finance Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision
in Finance Services

1

Agreement on the assignment of rights and acceptance of obligations

1

Lease Agreement

1

Addenda 1, 2 and 3 to the Lease Agreement

3

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Agreement on the payment of insurance premiums

1

Agreement on service provision in Sales Management and Support

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

Bank Guarantee Agreement

1

RWE Group Business
Services CZ, s.r.o.

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
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Jihomoravská
plynárenská, a.s.

Lease Agreement

1

Addenda 1, 2 and 3 to the Lease Agreement

3

Agreement on service provision in Sales Management and Support

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision
in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision in Marketing

1

RWE Grid Holding, a.s.

RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.

RWE Gas Transit, s.r.o.
RWE Consulting GmbH
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Grant of consent to the use of a trademark

1

Lease Agreement

1

Agreement on Contribution to Other Capital Funds

1

Agreement on service provision in Board Affairs, Compliance
and Archiving

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Sale of an ownership interest

2

Purchase Agreement

1

Addendum 1 to the Purchase Agreement

1

Agreement on the payment of insurance premiums

1

Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on the provision of Corporate Services

1

Agreement on service provision in Procurement & Services

1

Addendum 1 to the Agreement on service provision
in Procurement & Services

1

Agreement on service provision in respect of Board Affairs

1

Addenda 1, 2, 3 and 4 to a Lease Agreement

4

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Agreement on the assignment of rights and obligations
for security service provision

1

Addendum 1 to a Lease Agreement

1

Addendum 1 to a Loan Agreement

1

Agreement on the Lease of Personnel

1

Contract on Provision of Consulting Services

1
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Type/Subject matter of agreement

RWE Slovensko, s.r.o.

Consulting Agreement
Consultancy Agreement on Feasibility Study

1

RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.

Service Level Agreement in the Area of SLA Portfolio Management

1

Agreement on contract termination

1

Addendum 1 to a Lease Agreement

1

EČS – Elektrárna Čechy-Střed, a.s.
v likvidaci
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Scheme of the relations between and control of companies along the relevant
line within the RWE Group as at 31 December 2013
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
100.00% RWE Beteiligungsverwaltung Ausland GmbH
98.00% RWE East, s.r.o.
51.00% EČS – Elektrárna Čechy-Střed, a.s. v likvidaci
100.00% RWE Gas International N.V.
100.00% RWE Česká republika a.s.
100.00% RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Energo, s.r.o.
98.20% TEPLO Rumburk, s.r.o.
65.04% RWE Grid Holding, a.s.
100.00% RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.
100.00% JMP DS, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE GasNet, s.r.o.
49.00% RWE GasNet, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.
100.00% RWE Energie, a.s.*
100.00% RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.**
100.00% Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.**
100.00% Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.**
100.00% Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.**
100.00% RWE Gas Transit, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Service GmbH
51.00% RWE Group Business Services CZ, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE IT GmbH
99.00% RWE IT Czech s.r.o.

1.00% RWE IT Czech s.r.o.

*
As of 1 January 2014, the legal form of the company is private limited company.
**	The companies were wound up as of 1 January 2014 as part of a national merger by acquisition by RWE Energie, a.s.
***	The company was wound up as of 1 January 2014 as part of a national merger by acquisition by RWE IT Czech s.r.o.
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100.00% RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.***
2.00% RWE East, s.r.o.
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